
Dawkins Trail Phase 3:  Carver Tunnel 
CID-151231 

June 15, 2015 
Pre-Bid Meeting 

Presentation 
A slide show presentation was given by the Department and their Consultant. This presentation is 
attached at the end of these notes.  
Rock core from borings CT-1 and CT-2, from a height of approximately 20 feet above the tunnel roof to 
the bottom of the boring were offered for contractor review. 
 
Question and Answer Session 

1. What is the quantity estimate for the collapsed material in the tunnel? 
 A: Based upon the small portion of the tunnel visible during the assessments and the three 
borings drilled through the tunnel roof, it has been roughly estimated that there could be on the 
order of 33,000 cubic yards of collapsed material.  This is a preliminary estimate and should not 
be used for bidding purposes.  The Bidder should develop their own estimate for calculating 
their bid. 

2. Can material or work extend beyond the Right of Way?  
A: All work is to be performed within the Right of Way.  If the Contractor elects to work outside 
the Right of Way they will have to acquire consent release forms from the owners of the 
properties they wish to affect.  The Contractor will be responsible for any required permits  for 
working on those properties. 

3. The sidewall of the tunnel is not smooth; therefore can short bars be used to act as spacers from 
the walls to keep the conduit straight? 
A: Yes, if approved by the Engineer.  The cost of the spacers will be incidental to the installation 
of the conduit. 

4. If material is brought out and crushed, can it be stockpiled for later use by others, or be used on 
other trail sections? 
A: Excess material must be used on site, within the Right of Way, or removed by the Contractor. 

5. Is instrumentation (i.e. extensometers) being installed for this project? 
A: The Contractor may install instrumentation, provided that the instrumentation has been 
requested in the required Health and Safety Plan, and approved by the Engineer. The 
instrumentation will be installed at no cost to the Department. 

6. Can shotcrete be used in the undulations to keep blocks from moving into the tunnel? 
A: No. 

7. Can longer rock bolts be used? 
A: Longer bolts can be used at contractor’s option, but the Department will pay only for the 
specified bolt lengths. 

8. It is typical to ‘wrap’ the mesh and bolts from the tunnel out onto the tunnel portal faces until 
the portals are constructed.  Will this be done at this project? 
A: The scaling required around the portals is considered sufficient to remove the loose rock. 



9. Is a u-bolt in resin necessary for  holding the lighting conduit, or can a mechanical bolt be used 
with the resin with straps and screws to hold the conduit?  
A:  A mechanical bolt used in conjunction with resin is permissible if approved by the Engineer. 

10. Would a staggered rock bolt pattern be allowed? 
A: No variation in the bolt pattern will be allowed. 

11. Would it be possible to make arrangements to obtain access to the south portal? 
A: Direct access to the south tunnel would require traversing very rough terrain and KYTC does 
not have a construction easement for direct access.   The tunnel contractor could potentially 
coordinate with the coal company and/or the contractor for the trail section to the south in 
order to obtain access to the south portal.  However, KYTC’s intent is for the tunnel contractor 
to work from the north portal and we cannot assure the tunnel contractor that south portal 
access can be obtained.   
 

12. Is there a staging area that could be used for storing materials and crushing rock? 
A: The contractor needs to stay within the right-of-way limits or make arrangements with 
adjacent property owners in order to work outside of right-of-way. The Contractor will be 
responsible for any required permits  for working on properties outside of the Right of Way. 
 
 
 

Following the presentation the meeting was continued at the North Portal of the tunnel where all 
present were asked to sign the attendance sheet.  After viewing the portal and local access, the meeting 
ended.  The attendance sheets for both the meeting at the maintenance garage and the tunnel site are 
attached at the end of this document. 
 
The following links for Construction Procurement can be used to access information for this project: 
 
Main site http://transportation.ky.gov/Construction-Procurement/Pages/default.aspx 
 
PreQualified Contractors List   http://transportation.ky.gov/Construction- 
Procurement/Documents/Prequalified%20Contractors%20List.pdf 
 
 
Work Items List http://transportation.ky.gov/Construction- 
Procurement/Documents/Work%20Items%20Listing.pdf 
 
Prequal Information http://transportation.ky.gov/Construction- 
Procurement/Pages/Prequalification.aspx 
 
 
PlanRoom http://www.kytcplanroom.com/View/Default.aspx 
http://www.kytcplanroom.com/View/Default.aspx 
 
 

http://transportation.ky.gov/Construction-Procurement/Pages/default.aspx


June 26  Letting http://transportation.ky.gov/Construction- 
Procurement/Pages/lettings.aspx?letting=6/26/2015 
 
 
Bidder Registation Form required to bid http://transportation.ky.gov/Construction- 
Procurement/Publications/2015-05-29/Bidder%20Registration%20Form.pdf 
 
 
Call 202 base proposal    http://transportation.ky.gov/Construction-Procurement/Proposals/202-
BREATHITT-MAGOFFIN-15-1231.pdf 
 
 
June 26 Q/A  http://transportation.ky.gov/Construction-Procurement/Pages/questions-and-
answers.aspx?letting=6/26/2015 
 

http://transportation.ky.gov/Construction-Procurement/Pages/questions-and-answers.aspx?letting=6/26/2015
http://transportation.ky.gov/Construction-Procurement/Pages/questions-and-answers.aspx?letting=6/26/2015


Pre-Bid Conference
Dawkins Line Rail Trail

Carver Tunnel Rehabilitation

6/15/2015



Housekeeping
• Facilities
• Sign in Sheets
• Prequalification Requirements
• Notes of Meeting
• Safety
• Site Visit

• Parking
• Shuttling to tunnel
• South Portal

Bart Asher, Branch Manager 
KYTC, Division of Structural Design 
Geotechnical Branch



Dawkins Line Rail Trail
• Currently, the Dawkins Line Rail Trail is 18 miles long. When

the second phase of the trail is completed, it will be 36 miles.
• The first 18-mile leg of the trail was opened to hikers, cyclists

and horseback riders on June 15, 2013. The Dawkins Line
Rail Trail is the largest rail-to-trail in the state.

• Trail Design and Construction is the responsibility of KYTC –
Trail will be turned over to KY State Parks







• Rehabilitation of the Carver Tunnel is important for completion of 
the trail



The Carver Tunnel is approximately 1,500 
feet in length, and was constructed as an 
extension to the Dawkins Line to allow the 
C&O to reach into the Kentucky River 
watershed and provide rail service for a 
coal mine in Breathitt County.

Sometime after the removal of the rails, 
vandals stole a car and set it on fire inside 
the South end of the tunnel.  The car 
subsequently caused the wood lagging in 
the tunnel to ignite.  Various sources also 
indicate that coal or a coal seam also 
ignited .  According to the local fire 
department, attempts to put the fire out 
were unsuccessful. The EPA ordered RJ 
Corman to seal the tunnel, and they did so 
by creating berms of  rocks and dirt at each 
end. 



An active coal Mine surrounds 
the Carver Tunnel

• Licking River Resources closed operations 
on February 27, 2015

• Ember Energy, LLC assumed all of the 
permits of the old mine

• Plan to begin operation again first week of 
June

• Contact – Chris Lacy. Ember Energy, LLC. 
Office Phone – 606-743-4223

• Coordination will be required



1635

South Portal

North Portal

Old rail bed 
to tunnel



Existing Conditions and Construction Details
Kurt Schaefer – Stantec



North Portal at Present



View into North Portal (Some Steel Ribs 
have been stolen)



South Portal at Present
Access is difficult



Close Up of Rock Fall at South Portal



South Portal Excavated Oct 2013



View Inside South Portal



South Portal Steel Set Condition



Sample Rockfall Inside South Portal



Sample Rockfall Inside South Portal
Largest Dimension 10‘ X 4’ X 2-3’thick



Borings Advanced through Tunnel Roof and 
Sidewalls



Existing Conditions
Inside Tunnel



Tunnel Profile



Tunnel Profile









Portal Canopy



Lighting



Lighting



TRAIL CONSTRUCTION

Begin Trail 
Construction



TRAIL CONSTRUCTION

End Trail 
Construction



TRAIL CONSTRUCTION



TRAIL CONSTRUCTION



• Required information due as specified in the bid package.
• Submit information via e-mail to:

• Bob Lewis (Bob.Lewis@ky.gov), 
• Wayne Simpson(Wayne.Simpson@ky.gov), 
• Ryan Griffith (Ryan.Griffith@ky.gov)

• Without this approved experience requirement submittal 
you WILL NOT be an eligible bidder.

• Safety is of utmost concern!



Questions and Answers

• Please feel free to ask questions here or 
through the Division of Construction 
Procurement's web site.

• Some rock core is here and all the core 
will be made available for viewing by 
appointment

Bart Asher, Branch Manager 
KYTC, Division of Structural Design 
Geotechnical Branch



Site Visit
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